ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 13, 2004
8:02 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Represent ati ve John Coghi l
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Representative Bob Lynn

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 523

" An Act rel ating to qgual i fications of vot ers, vot er
regi stration, voter residence, precinct boundary nodification,
recogni zed political parties, voters unaffiliated with political
parties, early voting, absentee voting, ballot counting, voting
by nmail, initiative, referendum recall, and definitions; and
providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 411

"An Act relating to an optional election to prevent the nane and
address of a permanent fund dividend applicant from being
di scl osed, except to a state or federal agency."

- HEARD AND HELD
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 327(STA)
"An Act relating to pedestrians wusing rollerblades, roller
skates, and rollerskis."
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 523
SHORT TI TLE: VOTERS/ VOTI NG POLI TI CAL PARTI ES/ ELECTI ONS

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 13, 2004



SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
02/ 26/ 04

02/ 26/ 04
02/ 26/ 04
02/ 26/ 04
02/ 26/ 04
04/ 08/ 04
04/ 08/ 04
04/ 08/ 04
04/ 13/ 04

RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

Jr n- Page
2748

2748
2748
2748
2748

BILL: HB 411

~

IITTITIT 2

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
STA, JUD, FIN
FN1: ZERO(LAW
FN2: (GOV)
GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( STA)
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

SHORT TI TLE: PF DI VI DEND APPLI CATI ON RECORDS PRI VATE
REPRESENTATI VE(S) CROFT

Tz =

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
STA, JUD
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

SHORT TI TLE: ROLLERBLADES, ROLLER SKATES, ROLLER SKI S

SENATOR(S) SEEKI NS

SPONSOR( S) :
Jrn-Date Jrn- Page
01/ 28/ 04 2421
01/ 28/ 04 2421
04/ 13/ 04

BILL: SB 327
SPONSOR( S) :
Jrn-Date Jrn- Page
02/ 13/ 04 2157
02/ 13/ 04 2157
02/ 26/ 04

02/ 26/ 04

02/ 26/ 04

02/ 27/ 04 2312
02/ 27/ 04 2312
02/ 27/ 04 2312
02/ 27/ 04 2312
03/ 17/ 04 2545
03/ 19/ 04 2571
03/ 19/ 04 2571
03/ 19/ 04 2571
03/ 19/ 04 2571

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

(S)

(S)
(S)
(S

(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
STA, FIN
STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211
Moved CSSB 327(STA) CQut of
Commttee
M NUTE( STA)
STA RPT 3DP 1INR NEW TI TLE
DP: STEVENS G COWDERY,
STEDVAN;
NR. HOFFMAN
FN1: ZERQ( DPS)
FI N REFERRAL WAI VED
RULES TO CALENDAR 3/ 19/ 2004
READ THE SECOND TI ME
STA CS ADOPTED UNAN CONSENT
ADVANCED TO THI RD READI NG
UNAN CONSENT

April 13, 2004



03/ 19/ 04 2571 (S) READ THE THI RD TI ME CSSB

327( STA)

03/ 19/ 04 2571 (S COSPONSOR('S): W LKEN, GREEN,
STEVENS B,

03/ 19/ 04 2571 (S FRENCH, DYSON, ELTON

03/ 19/ 04 2571 (S PASSED Y17 N1 E2

03/ 19/ 04 2578 (S TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 19/ 04 2578 (S VERSI ON:  CSSB 327( STA)

03/ 22/ 04 3015 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 22/ 04 3015 (H TRA, STA

03/ 22/ 04 3035 (H CROSS SPONSOR(S): GUTTENBERG

03/ 30/ 04 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 30/ 04 (H Moved CSSB 327(STA) Qut of
Commi ttee

03/ 30/ 04 (H M NUTE( TRA)

03/ 31/ 04 3136 (H TRA RPT 4DP 3NR

03/ 31/ 04 3136 (H DP: MASEK, OGG STEPOVI CH,
HOLM

03/ 31/ 04 3136 (H NR: KOOKESH, KAPSNER, KOHRI NG

03/ 31/ 04 3136 (H FN1: ZERQ( DPS)

04/ 13/ 04 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

LAURA GLAI SER, Director

Di vi sion of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on behalf of the
di vision during the hearing on HB 523.

REPRESENTATI VE ERI C CROFT

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 411.

JOCE M CHEL, Staff

to Senat or Ral ph Seekins

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on SB 327, on
behal f of Senator Seekins, sponsor.

LI EUTENANT AL STOREY

Central Ofice
Di vision of Al aska State Troopers

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 13, 2004



Departnent of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on behalf of the Al aska
State Troopers during the hearing on SB 327.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-59, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:02 a.m Representatives Seaton

Coghill, G uenberg, and Wyhrauch were present at the call to
order. Representative Berkowitz arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HB 523- VOTERS/ VOTI NG POLI TI CAL PARTI ES/ ELECTI ONS

Number 0030

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 523, "An Act relating to qualifications of
voters, voter registration, voter residence, precinct boundary
nodi fication, recognized political parties, voters unaffiliated
with political parties, early voting, absentee voting, ballot
counting, voting by mail, initiative, referendum recall, and
definitions; and providing for an effective date.™

Nunber 123

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG noved [to adopt the commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 523, Version 23-GH2021\I, Kurtz, 4/12/04,
as a work draft].

Nunber 0144

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH obj ected [for discussion purposes]. He directed
the commttee's attention to a nenorandum from Kathryn Kurtz,
[ Legi sl ati ve Counsel, Legislative Legal and Research Services].

Number 0220
REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG asked for time to digest t he
menor andum He suggested the conmittee return to Anendnent 2,

whi ch had been di scussed, but not noved, during the |ast hearing
on HB 523 [on April 8, 2004].

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 13, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noved [to adopt Conceptual] Anmendnent 2, which
read as follows, [with some handwitten changes]:

Page 1, line 5, follow ng "counting,":
Insert "voting electronically,™

Page 20, followi ng line 26:

Insert a new bill section to read:

"* Sec. 39. The uncodified law of the State of

Al aska i s anended by addi ng a new section to read:

VOTING BY MAIL AND ELECTRONI CALLY. Not | ater
than January 31, 2005, the director of the division of
el ections shall provide a report to the |egislature on
the feasibility, costs, and benefits of authorizing a
system of voting by mail and electronically."”

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the page nunbers and |ine nunbers
needed to be changed to match [Version I].

The comm ttee took a brief at-ease.

Number 0385

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG poi nted out that the new section would
not be Section 39, and it would not go on page 20, line 6. He
suggested that the conmittee ask the bill drafter to insert
[ Conceptual Anendnent 2] wherever it should go in the bill. He

said he thinks that would be on page 20 and would go sonewhere
near Sections 47-49.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH stated the purpose of [Conceptual Amendnment 2]
was to address the electronic voting issue [that was addressed
in another bill] that was passed out of the House State Affairs
St andi ng Conmittee.

Nunber 0427

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH renoved his objection to Version | for purposes
of maki ng anendnents to the bill

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recomended that [Conceptual Anendnent

2] be offered conceptually, so that the bill drafter could place
it in the right section of the bill

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 13, 2004



CHAI R VEYHRAUCH cl arified that he is offering [Anendnent 2] as a
conceptual anendnent.

Nunmber 0498

LAURA GLAISER, Director, Division of Elections, Ofice of the
Li eut enant Gover nor, in response to a question from
Representative Guenberg, said there was no intention by the
division to create an additional fiscal note as a result of
provi ding the report [requested in Conceptual Anendnent 2].

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON rem nded the commttee that the division
had asked the date to be changed at the | ast hearing on HB 523.

M5. GLAI SER suggested that the m ddl e of February woul d worKk.
Nunmber 0546

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noved to anend [Conceptual Anmendnent 2] by
changing the words "January 31" to "March 1". No objection was
stated; therefore the amendnent to Conceptual Amendnment 2 was so
or der ed.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any further objection to
[ Conceptual ] Amendnent 2.

Nunmber 0573

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG renoved his objection [to Conceptual
Amendnent 2, as anended].

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that, there being no objection,
[ Conceptual] Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.

Nunber 0636

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in response to Chair Wyhrauch
confirmed that he had prepared a nunber of anendments to offer
that are nunbered for Version H of the bill. He indicated that
he would refer to Version H, but would ask that the bill drafter
change the pagination to conformto Version |

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH sai d, "So noted."

Number 0645

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Anmendnent 3, [|abeled
23- GH2021\H. 1, Kurtz, 4/12/04], which read as foll ows:

Page 4, lines 8 - 21:
Delete all material and insert:
"* Sec. 4. AS 15.10.090 is repeal ed and reenacted

to read:

Sec. 15.10.090. Notice of precinct boundary
designation and nodification. The director shall give
full public notice if a precinct is established or
abolished or if +the boundaries of a precinct are
desi gnated, abolished, or nodified. Public notice
must i ncl ude

(1) whenever possible, sending witten
notice of the change to each affected registered voter
in the precinct;

(2) providing notice of the change

(A) by publishing three tinmes in a daily or
weekly newspaper of general circulation in that house
district and in that precinct; or

(B) if there is not a newspaper described
in (A of this paragraph, by posting witten notice in
three conspicuous places, at |east one of which nust
be in the precinct;

(3) posting notice of the change on the
Internet site of the division of elections; and

(4) providing notification of the change to
the appropriate nunicipal clerks, community councils,
tribal groups, presiding officers, Native villages,
and village regional corporations established under 43
U S C 1606 (Al aska Native Cains Settlenent Act)."

Page 20, following line 6:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 47. AS 15.10.020(b) is repealed."”
Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ai ned that he had added the witten
additions to Anendnent 3 because the drafter had not realized

that polling places were to be included.

Number 0740

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 13, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH pointed to [paragraph (2), subparagraph (A)] of
Amendment 3. He asked if that [|anguage would require
publication six tines.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG answered no, it's only three tines. He
wel comed suggestions for clarifying the |anguage there.

Number 0765

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH suggested a friendly anendnent [Anendnent 1] to
Amendnent 3, to insert "or" after "house district” in
[ subpar agraph (A)].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would accept that friendly
anendnent [Anmendnent 1] to Amendnent 3. He clarified, "So, it
woul d be, "or, if possible, in the precinct;"'."

Number 0795

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked why the term house district is
even nentioned in this.

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG expl ained that there are sone
districts, such as that of Representative Carl Mses, where
there may be a polling place change "out at the end of the
chain." He said, "So, they may have sonething that's published
and circulated in Sand Point, but not out in Unalaska or
sonet hing. "

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ai ned, "The thinking was that there
may - out at Adak, or sonething - be no newspaper, but at | east
it would be published in sonmething that may find its way out
there and would at | east be published in the district itself."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ recommended deleting references to the
"house district".

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH remarked that he is not certain if the origina
bill contained "house district".

M5. GLAISER noted that it is in current |anguage. In response
to a question from Representative Berkowitz, she confirned that
muni ci pal precincts are the sane as state precincts.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ noted that there is |anguage currently

in the [Alaska State] Constitution that requires that House and
Senate districts be contiguous. He said, "That doesn't

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 13, 2004



necessarily have to be the case.” He noted that there are a |ot
of states where House boundaries are different than the Senate
boundari es, for exanple. He said he would encourage Al aska to
"go to that sort of concept in the future.” He said, "This is
about precinct boundaries and precinct polling places, and
you're injecting another termof art into this statute.™

Nunber 0956

M5. GLAISER directed attention to page 2 of Amendnent 3,
regarding the proposed repeal of AS 15.10.020(b). She said,
"There probably will be an additional fiscal note, because right

now we don't publish every time we change a polling place.
Sometimes we neke imediate changes in polling places, due to
sonmeone calling and notifying one of the regional offices saying
they aren't available at the polling place, and we make a swtch

and do what we can to get that notice out." Ms. d aiser
enphasi zed that [the division] is wlling to do this, but it
will require nore public notice than what it currently gives.
Number 0999

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH noted that in Version |, Section 4 already deals
with the issue of publication. He offered his understanding
that there wouldn't be any fiscal inpact from that section, but
there would be with the adoption of [Amendnent 3].

M5. GLAISER confirnmed that would be true. She offered her
understanding that the intent of Amendnent 3 would be to "nerge
the two types of notification to people - not just precinct
boundary changes, but polling place changes." The additional
requi renent for notice of polling place changes would result in
a mnimal fiscal note requirenent.

Nunber 1044

REPRESENTATI VE BERKON TZ insisted that there be notice of
changes in polling place because he has heard about an insidious
tactic for voter suppression by changing the polling place.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG agreed wth Representative Berkowtz
and accepted a friendly anendnent to delete the phrase "in the
house district or".

Number 1083

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG clarified that, with Anmendnent 2 to
Amendnment 3, the language [in subparagraph (A)] would read as
fol |l ows:

(A) by publication three tinmes in a daily or weekly
newspaper of general circulation in, if possible, the
precinct; or

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for unani nous consent on friendly
Amendnent 2 to Amendnent 3.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH obj ect ed for purposes of discussion.
Number 1117

M5. GLAI SER stated that Anendnent 2 to Anendnent 3 is fine. She
said, "W're very fortunate in the history of the state of
Al aska that our regional supervisors would not think of changing
a polling place for any notivation other than to acconmpbdate a
change required in the community ...." She enphasized that [the
division] fully believes in giving notice. Regarding the
| anguage specifying a daily or weekly newspaper, she gave an
exanple of a paper that is not daily, but publishes nore than
weekl y.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH wi t hdrew hi s objection. He asked if there was
any further objection to [Anmendnment 2] to Anendnent 3.

Nunber 1240

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ect ed. He asked, "Are we getting to a
point where the probability of having a newspaper in a polling
precinct is darn near zero?"

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH offered his interpretation that the paper of
general circulation that covers the district also covers the
precinct; therefore, the intent is not to have a specific paper

in a precinct. He said, "It happens to be subsumed within the
district where the newspaper's printed ... to provide whatever
woul d be." He said he is uncertain what sort of newspapers

woul d be dealt with in the rural areas.

M5. GLAI SER responded, "There are several, and sonetines we
overlap the publication.™ She |listed some nanmes  of
publ i cati ons. She added that [the division] does a lot of

notification by mail to the individual voters, and every tine a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 13, 2004



polling place changes, the voter [who uses the polling place]
gets a new voter card.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG, addressing Representative Seaton's
previously stated concern, clarified that the intent isn't that
the paper itself be located in the precinct, but that it is
available to be received in the precinct.

Number 1349
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON renoved his objection.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH announced that, there being no further
obj ections, [Anendnment 2] to Anendnent 3 was adopt ed.

The comm ttee took a brief at-ease.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH, in response to questions, clarified that the
previ ously adopted Amendnent 1 to Amendnent 3 had been to add
the word "or", and Anmendnment 2 to Anendnent 3, which the
conmm ttee just adopted, renoved that "or" | anguage.

Nunber 1664

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Amendnent 3 to Anendnent
3, to delete the words "daily or weekly" [in paragraph (2),
subpar agraph (A)].

M5. GLAI SER, in response, said, "I"'mgrateful for this."

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH announced that there was no objection to
Amendnent 3 to Anendnent 3; therefore, Amendnent 3 to Anendnent
3 was adopted. In response to the recent coments from
Representative Berkowitz, he said that he has heard of insidious
tactics [for voter suppression] being used el sewhere, but not in
Al aska. He said he wunderstands Representative Berkowitz's
concern.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ cited sone exanpl es.

Number 1521

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH renoved his objection to Anmendnent 3 [as
anended]. No further objection was stated; therefore, Amendnent

3, as anended, was adopt ed.

Number 1543

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Anendnent 4, | abeled,
23- GH2021\ H. 2, Kurtz, 4/12/04, which read as foll ows:
Page 5, following line 12:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 7. AS 15.20.045(b) is anended to read:
(b) The director nay designate by regulation

adopted under AS 44.62 (Admnistrative Procedure Act)

| ocations at which absentee voting stations wl|

be

operated for 15 days [ON OR AFTER THE 15TH DAY] before
an election and on election day [UP TO AND | NCLUDI NG
THE DATE OF THE ELECTI QN . The director shall supply
absentee voting stations with ballots for all house
districts in the state and shall designate absentee
voting officials to serve at absentee voting

stations. "
Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 5, line 14:

Delete "On or after the 15th day before

an

el ection up to and i ncl udi ng"

I nsert "For 15 days before an el ection and on"

Page 5, lines 16 - 17:

Delete "early in the office of an election

supervisor or in other |ocations designated by

t he

director ["

Insert "in |ocations designated by the director

[ EARLY I N THE OFFI CE OF AN ELECTI ON SUPERVI SOR'
Page 20, followi ng line 6:
Insert a new bill section to read:

"* Sec. 48. AS 15.20.048 is repealed.™
Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.
Page 20, line 9:

Del ete "secs. 17 - 39"
I nsert "secs. 18 - 40"

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH obj ect ed for discussion purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG explained that Anendnent
techni cal anendnent to cl eanup the | anguage.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- Apr i

13, 2004



CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noted that the anendnent specifies that AS
15.20.048 would be repealed from Section 48, but it is not
Section 48 in Version |I; therefore, Anmendnent 4 would have to be
confornmed to Version |

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG concurr ed.

Number 1711

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked what |ocations are generally
consi dered absentee voting stations.

M5. GLAI SER answered that they are usually places requested by

the community. Absentee voting stations are nore likely to be
found in a clerk's office or airports in places |ike Ketchikan
and Kenai . In response to questions, she confirned [that
absentee voting stations are also found] at wuniversities and
Access Al aska. She said she is not certain if they are at
hospitals, but said she would check. She nentioned that [the

division] provides a service by which it delivers ballots to
t hose who request themin a hospital.

Nunber 1765

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH conpared the proposed new and del eted |anguage
[In Section 7, subsection (b) of Amendnent 4] and said, "That
was harder to read.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG enphasi zed that his intent is that it
is 15 days before the election, so that the sixteenth day is the
day of the election itself.

Nunmber 1830

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH treated his own objection as wthdrawn;
t herefore, he announced that Anendnent 4 was adopt ed.

Number 1850

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Amendnent 5, | abeled,
23-GH2021\H. 3, Kurtz, 4/9/04, which read as foll ows:

Page 2, line 29:
Delete "voter's [ VOTER]"
| nsert "voter"

Nunmber 1855

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG read from a nenorandum from Legi sl ative
Legal and Research Services regarding grammar and the use of
"voter's" versus "voter".

Number 1930

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ suggested an alternative would be to
say, "only if the voter notified the director".

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he woul d accept that as a friendly
amendnent to Amendnent 5.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH clarified that the issue is an act that the
voter will have to take; "there has to be an affirmative duty by
the voter to take sone action in the section.” He suggested
that it my be nore elegant for Representative Guenberg to
wi t hdraw Amendnent 5.

Number 1975
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG wi t hdr ew Anendnent 5.
Nunmber 1995

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH announced that Representative Berkowitz's
previ ous suggestion for an anendnent would be called Anendnent
6, and it read as foll ows:

This presunption is negated only if the voter notified
the director in witing of a change of voting
resi dence.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ stated that he wants to get a clearer
idea why it's necessary that "this be the only way a voter can
negate a presunption of address.™

M5. GLAISER offered her belief that the intent is to prevent
anyone else from changing a voter's record; the only way a
record can be changed is if the voter asks for that change.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said frequently people show up to the

wrong polling place for whatever reason. He asked if the voter
can change hi s/ her address [on the voter's record] at that tine.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 13, 2004



M5. GLAI SER answered that can be done on the envelope of a
guestion ball ot.

Nunmber 2068

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL offered his wunderstanding that if a
person is going to change his/her address, that requires a
regi stration application.

M5. GLAI SER answered yes, but clarified that if a person wants
to change his/her address, the aforenentioned answer about the
question ballot just neans that a person can neke the change at
the polls, but it doesn't affect how that person's ballot is
count ed.

Number 2100

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that in his district, people nove
and their House votes will not count because they are registered
in a different House district, because they haven't "notified
within 30 days." He asked if that is correct.

M5. GLAlI SER answered yes.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said, "And yet they're valid voters in
every other respect.” He said those votes ought to count.

M5. GLAI SER responded that she believes that is a policy call of
the commttee. She said it's the voter's responsibility to
notify that he/she has changed districts.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH stated his assunption that the rule is in there
to provide sone certainty as to where the voter is and for the
pur pose of the division's records.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ said it seens to him that the system
should not be set up to serve the process, but rather to serve
the voter. He expressed that discounting a person's vote
because he/she has a wong address, when in all other respects
that person is a qualified voter is a wong policy call.

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL stated that it is an individual's
responsibility to ensure that he/she is voting in the district
in which he/she resides. He said, "I don't know that we want
them voting in a district that they're not residing in." He
suggested that would create nore questioned ball ots.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- April 13, 2004



2271

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH renm nded the commttee that Anendnent 6 had been
of fered by Representative Berkow tz.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ renoved his objection to Anendnent 6.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any further objection to
Amendnent 6. No objection was stated; therefore, Amendnent 6
was adopt ed.

Nunber 2313

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnment 7
to allow a person to vote if he/she neets all the requirenents
of a voter, regardless of whether that person has noved to
anot her district without notifying of the change of address.

TAPE 04-59, SIDE B
Nunber 2328

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that, basically, "this 1is just
getting rid of voter registration." He explained that there
woul d be no need to preregister, because a person would just say
from which district hel/she is. He said, "It seens the entire
process of voter registration becones al nost neani ngl ess. ™

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ clarified his neaning as foll ows:

What |'m saying is, soneone who is already registered
to vote - soneone who the departnent has found neets
the criteria to be a voter - ... noved in the

intervening election and [has] been in a new address
for nore than 30 days. They ought to be able to show
up and vote for their House district, or their Senate
district, or their judicial district wthout sonme sort
of repercussion for not having ... notified governnent
that they' ve noved.

Nunber 2284

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH cl arified that Conceptual [Amendnment 7] was the
"not ny obligation to tell the governnment that | noved and

if I am already registered | can vote where | |ive" anmendnent.
He stated that although he also doesn't like telling the

governnment about hinself, he knows that he has "sonme duty" and
would rather tell the governnment what he's doing rather than

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 13, 2004



having the governnent hunt him down. He said he does put a
little bit of responsibility on the individual. He pointed out
that there has to be admnistration that takes place regarding
voting and there needs to be sone certainty that people are
voting where they live and are registered. He added, "I guess,
conceptually, | have a problemw th your conceptual anendnent.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that Representative Berkowtz
and Ms. daiser could come up wth sonething that "can help
sol ve the problemyet be a workable solution.”

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ wi t hdr ew Conceptual [Anmendnent 7].
Number 2173

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Anmendnent 8, |abeled 23-
GH2021\H. 4, Kurtz, 4/12/04, which read as foll ows:

Page 2, following |line 30:

Insert a new bill section to read:

"* Sec. 2. AS 15.07.040 is amended to read:

Sec. 15.07.040. Tine for registration. A person
who is qualified wunder AS 15.05.010(1) - (3) is
entitled to register at any tine throughout the year
except that a person under 18 years of age nmay
register if the person will be 18 years of age or
ol der before the date of the next prinmary or general
el ection or the next regularly scheduled nunicipal
election in the district in which the applicant
resides [AT ANY TIME WTHN 90 DAYS | MVEDI ATELY
PRECEDI NG THE PERSON S 18TH BI RTHDAY] . "

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 3, line 16:

Delete "within 90 days after [OF] the date of
registration”

Insert "before the date of the next primary or
general election or the next regularly schedul ed
nmuni cipal election in the district in which the
applicant resides [WTH N 90 DAYS OF THE DATE OF
REG STRATI O\ "

Page 3, lines 21 - 23:
Del ete "any fornmer name under which the applicant
was registered to vote in the state;
(11)"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 13, 2004



| nsert ["ANY FORMER NAME UNDER WHICH THE
APPLI CANT WAS REG STERED TO VOTE | N THE STATE;

(111"

Page 3, line 23:
Delete "attestation”
I nsert "oath [ ATTESTATI O\ "

Page 3, line 24:
Delete "(10)"
Insert "(9) [10]"

Page 3, line 25:
Delete "(12)"

Insert "(11) [(12)]"

Page 20, followi ng line 6:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 48. AS 15.07.060(d) is repealed.”

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 20, line 9:
Del ete "secs. 17 - 39"
| nsert "secs. 18 - 40"

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that it doesn't natter whether a
person is 18 years of age 90 days before an election, but rather
whet her he/she is 18 years of age by election day.
Representative Guenberg noted that the first portion of
Amendnent 8 states that a person can register if hel/she is going
to be 18 by the date of the next primary, general, or nunicipa

el ection - whichever first occurs.

M5. GLAI SER said that appears to read clearly and nake sense.
In response to a question from Chair Wyhrauch, she offered her
understanding that current |anguage states that a person can
register "90 days prior," whereas [Anendnent 8] would allow the
person to register on January 1.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH remarked that the person could request an
absentee ballot and may then actually be voting at 17 years of
age, because they turn 18 the day before the election, for
exanpl e. He indicated that that situation could happen within
the current 90-day | anguage.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 13, 2004



MS. GLAI SER said she thinks that's correct.
Number 2009

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said Chair Wwyhrauch is correct. He
clarified that a person doesn't actually vote until the vote is
recei ved.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he thinks the way around the
problem is that a person can register in January, but that
person wll not be "on the rolls until Novenber."™ He said, "It
seens to ne if I'm 17 on Novenber 6, | can't attest the way |
need to attest on an absentee ballot, so you couldn't vote until
el ection day anyway."

CHAI R VWEYHRAUCH noted that [Anmendnent 8] would refine the |aw
that's already in place regarding 90 days.

M5. GLAI SER concurr ed.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said his central concern is that, from the
standpoint of adm nistration, [this part of Amendnent 8] would
not cause a problemfor the division.

M5. GLAI SER answered, "At first blush, yes, sir, that's right."
Number 1936

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON indicated that a person who registers

January 1 nay be 18 by the general election, but not by the
primry.

Nunmber 1918

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested an anendnent to Amendnent 8,
to add the phrase "whichever election first occurs" after "in
which the applicant resides", on page 1, lines 8 and 17 [as

nunbered on the amendnent].

M5. G.AISER comented that she understands [Representative
G uenberg] is trying to help. She added, "If | had sone tine
with ny regional supervisors and the people that have conducted
el ections over a nunber of years, then it would be a nore fair
playing field, then | could respond.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 13, 2004



CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to [the
suggestion to] anmend Anmendnent 8.

Nunmber 1839

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked, "Is this to say that if there was
a special election and they were properly registered that they
coul d not?"

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that's correct. He said, "If
there's a special election, it doesn't count; this is only
registering for regular elections, otherwise it would be
i npossi ble to adm ni ster."

Nunber 1815

M5. GLAISER responded that she does believe that the old
| anguage regarding the 90 days would address Representative
Coghill's concern, because "the markers weren't elections - the
mar ker was 90 days prior."

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL said he understands that speci al
el ections are "a problem"” He noted that the 90-day issue would
be an inportant policy call. He continued as follows:

Because what we're doing is we're saying now that the
90-day nmarker is not the issue, but a nunicipal,
general, or primary election [is] the issue. Now are
we saying to young nmen and wonen that their vote is
only good starting then, when they could very well
under the present law, be qualified to vote, and are
we helping the situation at all? And ... I'm asking
nyself that question, as well as asking you, because
l"mgoing to have to ponder this a little bit.

Number 1759
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON observed:

It seens like what we're doing here is satisfying the

time for registration - of when you can register to
vote - but ... if you register to vote and you're 18
by the tine a special election cones up, you' re going
to be able to vote anyway. This just marks when you
can register to vote, not when you can vote if you're
legally allowed to vote. | nmean, if you filled the
requirenent at the tinme of the ... special election,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 13, 2004



presune -- maybe we can ask the ... division if
there's anything, even if it was a special election
if you are qualified, if you'd be able to vote.

Number 1723

M5. GLAISER replied that a person would have to be 18 at the
time of any election to vote, and "this is a question about
regi stration.” She explained that she was just trying to
clarify what the markers are for registration; "before, it was
90 days and now, it's these elections.™

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG addressing the issue previously stated

by Representative Coghill, stated that his intent is to allow a
person to register early; it was not to prohibit a person who is
otherwise eligible from voting in a special election. He

expl ai ned, for exanple, that he had hoped to make it easier for
young people to register before going away to coll ege.

Nunmber 1660

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL voiced the foll ow ng:

Still, the 30-days requirenent from age 18 to any
election - you'd still have to be registered 30 days
before the election, so that doesn't change anything.
So, all I'm trying to figure out is if they could

register early as you said, and we had a special
el ection the end of July where they m ght otherw se be
eligible, but they now have to wait until the end of
August to vote.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said no; that's not the intent and if
further reading shows that there is a problem he'll be the
first to offer an anendnent to "cure that."

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said he is wuncertain if [the anmendnent to
Amendnment 8] would help. In response to Representative Coghill
he stated his intention was not to nove the bill before there
was a new conmttee substitute before the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he thinks the tine before soneone's
birthday is a nore internal nmarker than when an election is
going to be held. He said he would not have a probl em expandi ng
the time [from 90 days] to 120 days, because the person would
still have to be 18 before the el ection.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- April 13, 2004



Nunber 1544

CHAIR  WEYHRAUCH suggested t hat Representati ve G uenberg
bi furcate Amendnent 8. He suggested that I|ines 1-18 [as
nunbered on Anendnent 8] be del et ed.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that, hearing no objection, lines 1-18
wer e del et ed.

Nunber 1488

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to the second part of Anendnent
8, which he said spanned page 1, lines 20-23 through page 2,
lines 1-3, as well as the repealer on page 2, lines 16-18 [all
| ines as nunbered on Anendnent 8]. He noted that the origina

| anguage in [Version H had read that each applicant who
requests registration or reregistration shall supply any forner
name under which he/she was registered to vote in the state.

M5. GLAI SER explained that "it's just another way for us, when
we're checking the rolls, to make sure that they're clean; that
if you' ve reregistered under a fornmer name, ... we've deleted
the old record and that we put the new record back in."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would "delete" that part of the
amendnent .

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that the commttee was deleting |ines
21-23 on page 1 and lines 1-2 on page 2 [as nunbered on
Amendnent 8] .

Nunber 1340

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to page 2, lines 4-6 [as
nunbered on Anmendnent 8], which would delete "attestation" and
insert "oath". He explained that the wuse of the word

attestation is not found in the | aw anynore.

M5. GLAI SER confirnmed that is correct.

Nunber 1316

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG indicated that lines 4-6 on page 2 of
Amendnment 8 [as nunbered on the amendnent] is the only part of

Amendnent 8 remaining, since everything else either has been
del et ed or should be.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- April 13, 2004



Nunber 1293

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to Anendnment 8,
as anended. No objection was stated; therefore, Anendnent 8, as
anended was adopt ed.

Nunber 1981

MS. GLAI SER asked if there were any questions that the commttee
woul d |i ke answered regarding registration for an 18 year ol d.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said he wasn't sure, because he 1is not
dissatisfied with the way the |aw presently reads. He nentioned
that Representative Seaton had suggested to change the 90 days
to 120, and he said he doesn't have a conceptual problem wth
t hat either.

Nunber 1229
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he prefers the present marker.

CHAIR VWEYHRAUCH reiterated that Anmendnent 8, as anended, had
been adopted, "which deletes that entire issue.”

Number 1154

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Anmendnent 9, |abeled 23-
GH2021\H. 5, Kurtz, 4/9/04, which read as foll ows:

Page 7, line 26:

Del ete "at | east 90 days”
Insert "not earlier than January 1 of a presidential
el ection year and not later than the 90th day”

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that, currently, there is no
provision in state |law for independent candi dates, such as Ral ph
Nader, to be on the ballot. He offered his understandi ng that
there may be a constitutional requirenent that if people want to
run, there should be a process by which they get on the ballot.
He recollected that Ms. daiser had told himthat Alaska is the
only state not to have such a statute.

M5. GLAI SER said that's what she had been told. In response to

a request for clarification from Chair Wyhrauch, she reveal ed
that there is a group of attorneys that placed this question

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- April 13, 2004



before nenbers of the Al aska State Legislature |ast year. She
said [the division] checked with the Departnment of Law, because
the division thought that the current law on limted political

parties was sufficient; however, it was suggested by the
Department of Law that "yes, we did need to make this change to
our |aws." In response to a followup question from Chair

Weyhrauch, she explained that Al aska needs to nake this change
to its laws in order to allow access for a presidential
candidate to its ballot. She confirmed that it is sinply a
presi dential candi date issue.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH comrented that "all kinds of presidentia
candi dates get access to our ballots under existing [law]." He
said he is not sure what is really going on with [ Arendnent 9].

Number 0959

M5. GLAI SER responded that she doesn't really know the history
surrounding the law and she doesn't know whether adding this
neans there woul d be nore presidential candidates in the state.

Number 0900

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noted that present statute says that if a
person wants to be a candidate, he/she has to get a petition in
within 90 days of the general election. [ Avendment 9] woul d
make it no earlier than January, but would still limt it to 90
days; therefore, there would be a "window that's a little nore
narromy defined." Representative Coghill said that seens |ike
a greater limtation

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that Section 14 is new and there
is no provision for an independent candidate. He stated that
[ Arendnent 9] does exactly what Representative Coghill said it
woul d: a candi date cannot register earlier than January.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he stands corrected seeing the new
Section [14] and had only been focusing on [Amendnent 8].

Nunber 0824

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON of fered his understanding that, currently,
a candidate can file from January 1 to August 2, but Anendnent 9
would require that the candidate get his/her filing in by the
end of March, which he said he presuned is the 90th day after
January 1. He asked if that is what Representative G uenberg
intended, or if he neant the 90th day before the el ection.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- April 13, 2004



CHAIR WEYHRAUCH offered his wunderstanding that it would be
January 1 to the ninetieth day before the general election.

M5. GLAI SER said that's her understandi ng.
Nunber 0762

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ained, "If it does becone |law, we
don't want them filing before January 1 of the presidential
el ection year."

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that no public testinmony would be
taken today, but would be taken at the next hearing on HB 523.

Number 0655
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL renoved his objection [to Arendnent 9].

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked if there was "further comment on Anendnent
9." He announced, "Anendnent 9, then, is adopted.”

Nunmber 0643

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH turned attention to Anmendnment 10, | abeled 23-
GH2021\H. 6, Kurtz, 4/12/04, which read as foll ows:

Page 8, line 9, follow ng "candi date":

Insert "; and
(3) the name, Alaska mailing address, and signature
of the canpaign chair, who nust be an Al aska resident"”

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG expl ai ned that the purpose for
Anmendment 10 is so that there is an Al aska contact, which he
sai d should be an Al aska resident.

Number 0576

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Amendnent 10.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH obj ect ed.

M5. GLAISER stated that all the current seated parties have
chairs in the state and the division has contacts for them She
said she doesn't think that "this is onerous or an undue burden

on an independent candidate,” and she added that this would be a
policy call.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- April 13, 2004



CHAI R VEYHRAUCH not ed that [Amendnent 10 is part of Section 14],
whi ch addresses: "Qualifications for independent candi dates for
President of the United States; selection of candidate for Vice-
President; selection of electors.” He asked if major party
candidates are required to "put ... the state canpaign chair."

M5. GLAI SER responded that that's a good question. She said the
chair mght be sonething that APOC requires, but [the division]
does not. She noted, "W do have the chairman of the party; al

of that contact information is given to the Division of
Elections when they submt their bylaws." She said the
recogni zed parties are always in contact with the division when
t he chai rman changes. She added, "So, | don't know whether it's

like-to-like, but it appears to be."

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said he sees this as "putting sonething on one
group and not on another,” and he said he wonders if there is
sone sort of wequality issue [regarding Anmendment 10]. He
questioned whether requiring the chair to be an Al aska resident
m ght raise |legal questions regarding privileges and immunities,
for exanple. In response to a cormment from Ms. d aiser, he said
the legal issues could be considered in the House Judiciary
Standi ng Conmittee, but he remarked that a policy issue is, "Wy
are we doing that on one kind of a candidate and not on
anot her ?"

M5. GLAI SER noted that the chairs in Al aska for President George
W Bush and U S. Senator John Kerry are both Al aska residents;
however, she said she doesn't know if that's required by | aw.

Number 0375

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said, "The only reason it seens to be a
separate thing is because these are independent people that
aren't affiliated with political parties, so it seens to ne it's
not an onerous burden on themthat's not put on every party that
nom nates a candi date ...."

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH remar ked, "Well the parties have the machi ne and
the staff and the people, and sone of these independents are,
you know, just frankly out there."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded as fol |l ows:

You have to have signatures of 1 percent of all the
voters that voted in the last election, so you' re not

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- April 13, 2004



going to have sonebody just submtting their name
wi t hout having sone kind of an apparatus to get 1
percent of all the voters that voted in the |[ast
presidential election submtted. So, it just seens to
me that for admnistration, if the Division of
El ections doesn't have anybody to contact in the
state, ... it would be a very difficult situation.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said he is looking at the balance of getting
access to the ballot and <choice to the voters, versus
adm nistration, and he said [Anendnent 10] seens to weigh
agai nst access to the ballot in benefit to the adm nistrator.

Number 0251

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said it seens to him that a canpaign
for an independent candidate for President of the United States
shoul d have sonebody the division can contact in Al aska.

Nunber 0220

CHAl R WEYHRAUCH announced that Anendnent 10 would be set aside
to wait for a quorum

The comm ttee took an at-ease from9:36 a.m to 9:37 a.m

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that Anmendnent 10 was once again
before the comittee.

Number 0165
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he has no objection to Amendnent 10.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH w thdrew his objection. He announced that,
there being no further objections, Arendnent 10 was adopt ed.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH announced that HB 523 woul d be held over.

HB 411- PF DI VI DEND APPL| CATI ON RECORDS PRI VATE

Nunmber 0098

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 411, "An Act relating to an optional election to
prevent the name and address of a permanent fund dividend
applicant from being disclosed, except to a state or federal
agency. "

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- April 13, 2004



Number 0091

REPRESENTATI VE ERI C CRCOFT, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor
of HB 411, explained that the proposed legislation is a privacy
neasure regarding the permanent fund dividend (PFD), which woul d
direct the governnent to "keep sone of the information we give
confidential." He indicated that confidential information
includes [an applicant's] name and residential address, for
exanpl e. He stated that it's a right under "our constitution"
to keep that information private.

TAPE 04-60, SIDE A
Number 0001

REPRESENTATI VE CROFT offered an exanple of why a citizen nmay
want that [information] kept private.

REPRESENTATI VE CROFT turned to the fiscal note. He directed
attention to [page 1, beginning on line 10], which read as
fol | ows:

Not wi t hst andi ng other provisions, if a confidentiality
election is made under this section, the departnent
may only rel ease the nanme and address

(1) to a state or federal agency;

(2) in conpliance with a court order; or

(3) as directed by the individual who made the
confidentiality election.

REPRESENTATI VE CROFT indicated a portion of the fiscal note
anal ysis, which read as foll ows:

The bill as witten does not allow sharing of the
information wth |ocal governnent agencies. If we
cannot share the file, or if the file is not conplete,
| ocal governnent agencies will submt their full lists
to PFD and we will have to do the matching process

Approxi mately 60,000 garnishnents wll need to be

keyed in to the system and nat ched.

REPRESENTATI VE CROFT noted that the Senate discussed allow ng
the nanmes to be put on the web, but not the addresses, because
havi ng access to the names may help in the prevention of fraud.
He offered an exanpl e.

Number 0127

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- April 13, 2004



CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH referred to a letter [included in the conmttee
packet] from a woman [who survived donestic violence] and has
changed her social security nunber and nane. He asked how it
would matter if the name was accessible if it's a new nane
anyway.

REPRESENTATI VE CROFT noted that the nane change process itself
is public; therefore, the perpetrator could go to the court and
find that information. He enphasi zed that the inportant concept
behind the bill is to enable people to have control over what
information the governnent advertises about them He nmenti oned
the "check box" approach, but said he would be anenable to any
approach that hel ps protect the privacy of PFD applicants.

CHAI R VWEYHRAUCH asked about the court system which uses PFD
lists for its jury duty lists.

REPRESENTATI VE CROFT offered his wunderstanding that would be
categorized as a state agency.

Number 0273

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there have been a significant
nunber of people that are reported on fraud, based on the
publication of the list on the web.

REPRESENTATI VE CROFT noted, "That was a concern that was raised
in the Senate hearings on the bill."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON questi oned whether there was any reason to
supply a list of PFD applicants. He clarified, "Is there any
reason why each person should have to select 'confidential' or
"nonconfidential'?" He surmsed that the biggest reason to get
names on a list is for purposes of advertisers.

REPRESENTATI VE CROFT responded that he generally agrees wth
Representative Seaton on this issue. He said he doesn't see
much public justification for supplying the Iist. Gving the
i ndi vi dual the option would be fine, he said.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked about individuals who owe debt. He noted
that the Al aska permanent fund is a source of incone to pay off
debt. He said, "This would not prohibit a creditor from getting
information, at all, from the [Permanent Fund D vidend Division]
in order to collect on a debt through the PFD check."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- April 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE CROFT responded that he hopes not. He i ndicated
that would involve a court order [which is one of the exceptions
to the confidentiality rule listed in Section 1 of the bill].

Number 0458

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if wit of execution would be
such an order. He said he would |ike the |anguage to include
t hat .

REPRESENTATI VE CROFT said he thought the |anguage [in Section 1,
paragraph (2)] would cover that, but he added that it would be
fine to clarify that |anguage.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he can't think of any other reason
why peopl e woul d have to access that information.

Nunmber 0536

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH questioned why a federal agency would be all owed
access.

REPRESENTATI VE CROFT answered that he didn't want to get in the
way of the creditor - sonebody who is legitimtely owed noney -
or "sort of legitimate governnmental purposes.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that bounty hunters m ght
need this information.

Number 0615

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL suggested that the commttee mght be
able to change sonme of the bill's |anguage in which people would
have to specify that they do want the information to be shared.

[HB 411 was heard and hel d. ]

SB 327- ROLLERBLADES, ROLLER SKATES, ROLLER SKI S

Nunber 0684

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that the |ast order of business was CS
FOR SENATE BILL NO 327(STA), "An Act relating to pedestrians
using rollerblades, roller skates, and rollerskis."

Number 0700

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- April 13, 2004



JCE MCHEL, Staff to Senator Ralph Seekins, Alaska State
Legislature, testifying on behalf of Senator Seekins, sponsor,
presented the sponsor statement, which read as follows [origina
punct uation provided]:

For many vyears roller-skiers' |legal use of public
roadways was, nore or |ess, taken for granted. Thi s
assunption was successful ly chal | enged in t he
Fai rbanks area last fall. Senate Bill 327 seeks to

remedy this situation by specifically allow ng the use
of particul ar wheel ed devices on those public roadways
al so available to bicyclists. It also recomends a
set of safety standards for the use of these devices.

Alaska is home to sonme of the best international,
national, collegiate, and junior cross-country skiers
on the planet. In fact, seven of the ten Al askans
conpeting in the 2002 Wnter Odynpics in Salt Lake
City were cross-country skiers. | magi ne that. Seven
A ynmpic cross-country skiers from such a small state
as ours! This speaks volunmes not only about our
skiers’ wor k ethic but al so their training
opportunities.

The natural preference of many of these world-class
athl etes would, no doubt, have Al aska covered in snow
year - r ound. Since this is not a reasonable near-term
possibility, the use of wheeled skis to imtate snow
skiing has growmn to becone an effective training too
for use during non-winter nonths. \What's nore, Al aska
is becomng well known nationally and internationally
as a favored sumrer-tine training site.

For these reasons, it is the intent of the proposed
| egislation to accomnmobdate this seasonal use of sone
of our roadways. In fact, other northern |ocales -
such as Norway, Sweden and Canada - have, for many
years, supported the efforts of their cross-country
athletes with simlar provisions. Furthernore, the
proposed |egislation borrows  heavily from Cross
Country Canada's policy respecting the use of roller-
skis on public roads.

Senate Bill 327 seeks to accommodate this inportant
training activity by wutilizing safe and reasonable
met hods for sharing roadway surfaces with notorized
vehi cl es. It has garnered a groundswell of support

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- April 13, 2004



t hroughout the cross-country comunity ranging from
Al aska's Interior region to Southcentral to the Kenai
Peni nsul a.

The 2006 Wnter Jdynpic ganmes are just around the

cor ner. Wuld it be too nmuch to expect seven (or
nore) of our cross-country skiers to nmake the trip to
Torino, Italy? O course not! In fact, a little

courtesy and comon sense conbined with a small
statutory revision can hel p make it happen.

Nunmber 0855

LI EUTENANT AL STOREY, Al aska State Troopers ("troopers"), stated
that the troopers have been working wth the sponsor of SB 327.
He stated, "W are testifying to let the legislators know that
we will gladly work with the sponsor if this was to becone |aw,
in promulgating regulations through the Departnent of Public
Safety to address the use of these devices on the areas that can
| egal |y have bicycles on them" He indicated the desire to give
consideration in those regulations to certain factors, including
the age and experience |evel of the people who would be using
"these devices" on the shoulder of the roads, and how the
devices can be used in a safe manner. He nentioned factors that
the troopers will give consideration to if the bill becones | aw,
including "those stopping issues,"” the protective gear that
people would be required to use, and how they wll conduct
thenselves in intersections and driveways to avoid injuries,
especially the inexperienced, younger users of the devices.

Nunmber 0958

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked what the difference is between "roadways”
and "vehicul ar ways", as witten in the bill

LI EUTENANT STOREY surm sed that a vehicular way could nean a
| ong driveway or parking |ot.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH pointed out that a parking lot could be
privately owned. He asked if the intent of the bill is to cover
bot h public and private vehicul ar ways.

LI EUTENANT STOREY replied that he can't speak to the intent of
the sponsor. Notwi t hstanding that, he remarked that school
parking lots, for exanple, are comn-use areas. I n response to
a followup question from Chair Wyhrauch, he offered his
understanding that "areas available for use by bicycles” would

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- April 13, 2004



mean that "if you can legally ride a bicycle on the shoul der of
a particular roadway, then you can legally use the devices."

Nunber 1044

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there is currently a law or
regul ation requiring bicyclists to wear hel nets.

LI EUTENANT STOREY answered, "Not to ny know edge."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "Is there a good reason why
t hese peopl e should wear them but bicyclists shouldn't?"

LI EUTENANT STOREY offered his own point of view that there is a
greater capability to stop a bicycle because of the mechanica

braking device on it, and the front wheel provides a
"reactionary gap" - some cushion between the bicyclist and a
vehicle that may conme out in front of himher from a driveway,

for exanpl e.

Nunber 1110

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that his wife made a video on
bicycle safety and the need to wear helnets. He asked
Lieutenant Storey if he thinks it's safe to bicycle without a
hel et .

LI EUTENANT STOREY said he can't speak from personal experience;
however, he reveal ed that he has seen people who have sustained
serious injuries in bicycle accidents, resulting in soft tissue
damage and head injuries. He noted that helnets are required on
mlitary bases. Subsequently, he stated his personal belief is
that bicyclists should wear hel nets.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that on line 8 of the bill, it
only requires that a helmet and bright clothing be worn. He
asked if other protective gear, such as el bow pads, should be
i ncluded in the | anguage.

LI EUTENANT STOREY answered that would be one of the issues that
woul d be considered when drafting regulations related to this.
He said his kids had [in-line skates], and he indicated that if
he hadn't insisted that they wear kneepads and el bow pads his
medi cal expenses woul d have been nuch higher.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the bill is unusually
drafted and doesn't set out the whole statute; therefore, "you

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- April 13, 2004



can't see what the bill itself does.”" He said, "It apparently
is some kind of authorization to the director of notor vehicles,

or sonebody, and | think ... this thing should be reprinted to
set out the ... whole statute ...."

Nunber 1208

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted the |anguage on page 1, line 1,
read, "pedestrians obey traffic laws". He said pedestrians face

traffic, while bicyclists ride wth traffic, and he asked which
set of traffic laws [the "pedestrians using wheel ed adjuncts"]
woul d obey.

LI EUTENANT STOREY stated that SB 327 addresses AS 28.05.011,

whi ch describes the duties of the comm ssioner of public safety.

He offered his inpression that the intent of the bill is to give
enpowernment to the comm ssioner to draft regulations to allow
rollerbladers and rollerskiers to use those sane areas that are
| egal for bicycles to use.

Number 1300

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ pointed out that "rollerblades" is a
brand nane. He suggested using "in-line skates".

[ SB 327 was heard and hel d. ]

ADJ QURNMENT

Nunber 1312

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 10:03
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- April 13, 2004



